
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

   Henry Fuertes      Linda Cowles 
       P&Z CHAIRPERSON         P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

  
Neil West      Ginger McFadden   

  

          
             

Matthew Hanks       Mary Starr 
 

 
 
 

Daniel Tunstall 
 
 
 

 

FEBRUARY 18, 2013  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

February 18, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 
2013, AT 6:30 P.M., CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the February 4, 2013, p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 
6:30 p.m. 

 

III. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 

NO. 2013-04Z 
 
A request of Lisa Marino, applicant and The Old Place Inc., owner, for approval 
of a zone change from the Neighborhood Service (NS) zone to the General 
Business (GB) zone for 9.930 acres on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being 9.930 acres of land, Lots 30-30A, of the Allison – 
Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision of Section 20, of the H.T. & B. 
Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 506, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  8809 Broadway 
 

 
B. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 

NO. 2013-05Z 
 
A request of Christy Smidt (Kerry G. Gilbert & Assoc.), applicant and Beeman 
E. Strong (for the Settegast Family), owner, for approval of a zone change 
from the Planned Development (PD) zone to the General Business (GB) zone 
for 31.3165 acres on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 31.3165 acre (1,364,147 square foot) tract of 
land  
situated in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract Number 198 in Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the called 118.775 acre tract of 
land described in deed to Marion E. Settegast, et al as recorded in Volume 
1421, Page 25 of the Brazoria County Deed Records, said 31.3165 acre tract 
of land. 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

February 18, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 

General Location:  Approximately 700’ North of Broadway on Pearland Pkwy 
 

 
C. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 

SAVANNAH BEND SECTION 4 
 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Preliminary 
Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential 
subdivision on the following described property, to wit 
 
Being 7.2 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, Abstract 403 and 
J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly 
being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract (described as 
Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an instrument of 
record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas 
(B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, Official 
Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location:  Savannah Bend Drive and Fieldcrest Lane 
 

 
D. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 

SAVANNAH BEND SECTION 5 
 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Preliminary 
Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential 
subdivision on the following described property, to wit 
 
Being 15.5 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, Abstract 403 and 
J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly 
being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract (described as 
Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an instrument of 
record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas 
(B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, Official 
Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location:  Savannah Bend Drive and Fieldcrest Lane 

   
 
E. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – COVINGTON ESTATES 

CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

Decision Deadline 

2-22-13 

Decision Deadline 

2-22-13 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

February 18, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 

A request by Covington Estates, LLC., applicant and owner, for approval of a 
Cluster Plan on a 9.637 acre tract of land for  a single-family residential 
subdivision, generally located north of Hughes Ranch Road on Hillhouse 
Road. 
 
Legal Description: A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20-A, 
situated in Lot 20 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, 
Abstract No. 506, as recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map 
Records, and; 
 
A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20, situated in Lot 20 of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, Abstract No. 506, as 
recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map Records. 
 
 
General Location: North of Hughes Ranch Road on Hillhouse Road 

 
 

F. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Cluster Development 
3. Planning Day 
4. March 4, 2013,  P&Z Regular Meeting 
5. Revised Joint Public Hearing Date, March 25, 2013 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City 
Hall on the 15th  day of February, 2013, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of February 2013. 

Decision Deadline 

2-22-13 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

February 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, 
FEBRUARY 4, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 
LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the meeting to order at 6:42 p.m. with the 
following present: 
 

P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Neil West 
P&Z Commissioner Matthew Hanks 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
 

Also in attendance were:  City Planner Harold Ellis, Planner II Ian Clowes, Director of 
Community Development Lata Krishnarao, Office Coordinator Judy Brown, and 
Administrative Clerk Debbie Cody. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles made the motion to approve the minutes of the 
P&Z Regular Meeting of January 21, 2013, and P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
seconded. 
 
The vote was 7-0 and the minutes of the Planning and Zoning Regular Meeting of 
January 21, 2013 were approved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TIME – 
PRELIMINARY PLAT OF ENERGY ESTATES 
 
A request was made by William T. Mars, applicant and owner, for approval of an 
extension on a previously approved Preliminary Plat of Energy Estates. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve, and P&Z Commissioner 
Matthew Hanks seconded. 
 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

February 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Planner II Ian Clowes explained to the Commissioners the purpose of the request for 
extension being the necessity of establishing the infrastructure.  He also explained that 
until the Unified Development Code  (UDC) changed, a preliminary plat would expire 
two years after date of submission and the time limit to file an extension was thirty days 
prior to expiration.  However, with the change in the UDC, expiration is now two years 
from date of approval.  In the applicant’s case, approval was March 27, 2011 which 
allowed request for extension well within the thirty day deadline.  
 
Commissioner Tunstall asked if the applicant was present to which Planner II Clowes 
responded that he was not present.  Commissioner Cowles inquired about the location 
of the subdivision and Planner II Clowes responded that he would provide that 
information to the Commission. 
 
The vote was 6-1 approving the extension.  P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall voted in 
opposition. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF SAVANNAH 
MEADOWS SECTION TEN 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez – LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Savannah 
Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah Meadows Section 
Ten, generally located at the Southeast corner of Post Road (CR 58) and Linden Creek 
Lane, proposing a 26 lot single-family residential subdivision on the following described 
property, to wit 
 
Being 10.2 acres of land located in the A.C.H.& B. Survey, Abstract 403 and J.S. 
Talmage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County Texas, more particularly being a 
portion of the residue of a called 161.450 acre tract (described as Tract 5) conveyed to 
Savannah Development, LTD., by an instrument of record File #00-037203, Official 
Records of said Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record 
in File No. 200080225, Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes reported that this application had originally been submitted to the 
Commission in September 2012 as a preliminary plat and it was approved.  With all 
requirements being met, he recommended approval of the final plat. 
 
The question was posed by P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles regarding having an 
active drill site to which Planner II Ian Clowes responded affirmatively stating however, 
that it did not pose any problems. 
 
The vote was 7-0.  The Final Plat of Savannah Meadows Section Ten was approved. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

February 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. Commissioners Activity Report – Vice Chairperson Linda Cowles attended the 

Council workshop on signs and reported that there were complaints regarding the 
electronic signs flashing and that some citizens were not happy with the color rule as 
well.  It was also reported that the City Council asked for a joint workshop with the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on signs.  Director of Community Development 
Lata Krishnarao added that Mayor Reid suggested the Planning and Zoning 
Commission meet first and then make recommendations to the Council. 

2. Zoning Update – City Planner Harold Ellis reported of the recent zone change at 
Country Place to Planned Development for the residential areas and GB (General 
Business) for commercial along Country Place Parkway. 

3. P&Z Strategic Plan Update - City Planner Harold Ellis referred to the previously 
distributed packets indicating the list of commissioners and their perspective teams 
for the Planning & Zoning Strategic Plan. 

4. Next P&Z and JPH Meeting – February 18, 2013 
5. February 18, 2013 – Workshop – Capital Improvement Advisory Committee – Impact 

Fee Study, presented by City Engineer Andrea Broughton – City Planner Harold Ellis 
reminded the Commission of another workshop on February 18th, in which a regular 
meeting would follow, requiring an action item relative to the Impact Fee Study.  
Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao reiterated the right of the 
Commission to analyze the report, solicit questions, and offer suggestions during the 
workshop. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular Meeting at 7:01 p.m. 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 18th day of February 2013, 
A.D.  
 

            __________________________________  
           P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD FEBRUARY 18, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 

TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2013-04Z 
 
A request of Lisa Marino, applicant and The Old Place Inc., owner, for approval 
of a zone change from the Neighborhood Service (NS) zone to the General 
Business (GB) zone for 9.930 acres on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being 9.930 acres of land, Lots 30-30A, of the Allison – 
Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision of Section 20, of the H.T. & B. 
Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 506, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  8809 Broadway 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-04Z 
 

A request of Lisa Marino, applicant and The Old Place Inc., owner, for approval of a 
zone change from the Neighborhood Service (NS) zone to the General Business 
(GB) zone for 9.930 acres, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being 9.930 acres of land, Lots 30-30A, of the Allison – Richey  
Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision of Section 20, of the 
H.T. & B. Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 506, Brazoria 
County, Texas 

 

General Location:  8809 Broadway, Pearland, TX 
 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  February 18, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:          March 11, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:    March 25, 2013* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Lisa Marino, applicant, on behalf of The Old Place, Inc., owner, is 
requesting approval of a zone change from the Neighborhood Service (NS) zone to 
General Business (GB) zone for 9.930 acres for the above referenced location.  If 
approved, this zone change will allow additional uses to be permitted by-right at this 
location, including many uses currently allowed only with the approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit.  Examples of these uses include restaurant’s, daycare’s, food store’s, 
church’s, etc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

Page 2 
 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 
 
 

Zoning  Land Use 

North Neighborhood Service (NS)  Vacant 
South General Business (GB)  Vacant 
East General Business (GB)  Commercial Retail Center 
West General Business (GB)  Commercial Retail Center 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Neighborhood Service (NS).  As the property is 
currently being requested to be rezoned to General Business (GB), a breakdown between 
those requirements is provided below: 
 
   NS   GB   Existing Site 
Lot Size:   12,500 sq ft  22,500 sq ft   0.9495 acres   
Lot Width:   100’   150’   208.73’ 
Lot Depth:   100’   125’   208.70’’ 
Front Setback: 25’   25’   ~25’  
Rear Setback: 10’   25’   ~25’ 
Side Setback : 10’   10’   ~10’ 
 
In addition to these requirements, this property is also subject to the City’s Corridor Overlay 
District (COD) regulations. Among other regulations, a 30’ front landscaping setback is 
required as a result of the COD regulations, as well as an increase in the quantity of trees 
and shrubs, and enhanced building façade materials. At this time, the property does not 
appear to meet the landscaping or landscape buffer requirements for the COD.  Future 
expansion of the building footprint (min. 500 square feet) or in parking (20% additional) will 
trigger full compliance of the Unified Development Code requirements.  At this time, the 
applicant will only be required to comply with the parking and facade requirements. The 
building does currently meet the façade requirements. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property is not currently platted.  Platting would be required prior 
to the release of any future building permits. The applicant will be able to operate their 
business without having to plat the property. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Retail, Offices, and Services for the subject property. 
 The Comprehensive Plan further indicates that an appropriate zoning district for Retail, 
Offices, and Services is General Business (GB).  The property’s current zoning of  
Neighborhood Service (NS) is also an appropriate zoning district for the Retail, Offices, and 
Services designation in the Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, both the existing and 
proposed zoning districts are in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

Page 3 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Broadway, a major thoroughfare, with a minimum of 120’ right-of-way. The 
property also has frontage on Hillhouse Road, a local road, with a minimum 60’ right-of-
way. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
public sewer. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, is not anticipated to have any negative impacts on existing or future 
developments in the immediate area.  The proposed zone change will be in 
conformance with the majority of other commercially zoned property on Broadway.  
Additionally, a Traffic Impact Analysis was submitted with the site plan approval for the 
existing shopping center which accounted for typical shopping center intensities such 
as the existing nail salon and recently approved daycare.  Therefore, negative impacts 
from a traffic perspective are not anticipated. 
 
In reviewing the zoning along Broadway, from the east side of Pearland to SH-288, it 
appears that there are less than 12 parcels that are zoning Neighborhood Service.  The 
majority are zoned General Business (GB) or General Commercial (GC).  Over time it is 
anticipated that these parcels will be rezoned to General Business (GB), based on the 
Future Land Use Plan. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change, however 
the property is currently developed.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2013-04Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. Approval of the zone change will result in conformance with the surrounding zoning 
as well as current and future land uses. 
 

2. The proposed zone change should not have any significant negative impact on the 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

Page 4 
 

surrounding properties and developments. 
 

3. The proposed zone change will bring the property into compliance with the 
approved Future Land Use Plan. 
 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
 Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Vicinity & Zoning Map
Zone Change 2013-04Z

8809 Broadway

GB

NS

SR-12

R-3

PUD

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUNDOWN DR

SUN GLEN DR

SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

hellis
Sticky Note
MigrationConfirmed set by hellis

hellis
Sticky Note
MigrationConfirmed set by hellis



Abutter Map
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

8809 Broadway

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUNDOWN DR

SUN GLEN DR

SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Zone Change 2013‐04Z
8809 Broadway ‐ NS to GB

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
DOHERTY FRANK TRUSTEE 8735 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77584‐7721
NEEDHAM RICKY D 813 INDIGO SPRINGS LN LA MARQUE TX 77568
VELAZQUEZ CARLOS & MELODY 9004 SUNRISE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584‐2423
WILLIAMSON TRAVIS W 9006 SUNRISE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584‐2423
THE OLD PLACE INC PO BOX 703 MANVEL TX 77578‐0703
PEARLAND PLAZA LP 3922 ABBEYWOOD DR PEARLAND TX 77584‐4943
SILVER PEAR 518 BUSINESS PARK LTD PO BOX 79650 HOUSTON TX 77279‐9650
MOORE THEODORE & MAMMIE 2657 HILLHOUSE RD PEARLAND TX 77584‐3493
FM 518 WEST LTD 3800 SOUTHWEST FWY HOUSTON TX 77027‐7585
SU CHENG HUEY TR 102 PEBBLEBROOK CT SUGAR LAND TX 77478‐3935
FORTRESS PEARLAND INVESTMENTS LLC 4318 W FUQUA ST HOUSTON TX 77045‐6204
SIMMONS ANDREW 4830 MALLOW ST HOUSTON TX 77033‐4006
WESTCHASE HOSPITALITY INC 1403 RAVENEL LN SUGARLAND TX 77479
LISA MARINO 8809 BROADWAY STE B PEARLAND TX 77584



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

8809 Broadway

Offices

Retail, Offices and Services

Business Commercial

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Medium Density Residential

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUNRISE TRAIL
SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-04Z 

8809 Broadway

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUNDOWN DR

SUN GLEN DR

SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD FEBRUARY 18, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 

TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2013-05Z 
 
A request of Christy Smidt (Kerry G. Gilbert & Assoc.), applicant and Beeman E. 
Strong (for the Settegast Family), owner, for approval of a zone change from the 
Planned Development (PD) zone to the General Business (GB) zone for 31.3165 
acres on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 31.3165 acre (1,364,147 square foot) tract of land  
situated in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract Number 198 in Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the called 118.775 acre tract of 
land described in deed to Marion E. Settegast, et al as recorded in Volume 1421, 
Page 25 of the Brazoria County Deed Records, said 31.3165 acre tract of land. 
 
General Location:  Approximately 700’ North of Broadway on Pearland Pkwy 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-05Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-05Z 
 

A request of Christy Smidt (Kerry G. Gilbert & Assoc.), applicant and Beeman E. 
Strong (for the Settegast Family), owner, for approval of a zone change from the 
Planned Development (PD) zone to the General Business (GB) zone for 31.3165 
acres, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being a 31.3165 acre (1,364,147 square foot) tract of land  
situated in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract Number 198 
in Brazoria County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the 
called 118.775 acre tract of land described in deed to Marion 
E. Settegast, et al as recorded in Volume 1421, Page 25 of the 
Brazoria County Deed Records, said 31.3165 acre tract of 
land. 
 

General Location:  Approximately 700’ North of Broadway on Pearland Pkwy 
 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  February 18, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:          March 11, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:    March 25, 2013* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
CURRENT CASE:  Christy Smidt, applicant, has applied for a zone change on behalf of 
Mr. Beeman Strong, representing the Settegast Family, owner, of 31.3165 acres of land 
located approximately 700’ north of the northwest intersection of Broadway (FM 518) 
and Pearland Pkwy.  The property in question is currently zoned Planned Development 
(PD) and contains land which is part of a Planned Development known as Pearland 
Commons which was approved by City Council in 2008.  The applicant is requesting 
that the property be rezoned to General Business (GB).   
 
The total acreage of the previously approved Pearland Commons Planned 
Development is approximately 53 acres.  Approximately 22 of these acres were 
rezoned in 2011 to General Business for a proposed commercial development that 
included HEB grocery store.   



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-05Z 

Page 2 
 

 
The applicant is proposing a shopping center on the remaining 31 acre site which is 
intended to compliment the proposed development to the south.  The development 
would abut the residential subdivision to the west and have parking in front along 
Pearland Parkway.    
 
SITE HISTORY:  Prior to the adoption of the Pearland Commons PD in March 2008, 
the entire site (all 53 acres) had three zoning designations: General Business (GB), and 
two residential zones, R-3 and R-2.  The acreage for the GB zoned property, located at 
the northwest intersection of Broadway and Pearland Pkwy was approximately 20 
acres. This is the site that was rezoned back to GB in 2011.  The remaining acreage 
remained as PD and is now requesting a matching GB zone.  
 
The GB zone was approved at the hard corner for a specific development (HEB grocery 
store) and had assurances in place from the developer that the project would be of a 
higher quality then would normally be required.   The developer had also submitted a 
site plan at the time of zone change showing the layout of the proposed development.   
This adjoining 31 acre site is considered to be of similar importance to the city as was 
the 20 acre site at the hard corner.  Unlike that zone change, this proposal lacks any 
specific site plan or specific uses and therefore any assurances of a higher quality 
development then would normally be required.   
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning        Land Use 

North Single-Family Residential-2 
(R-2)  
 

       Vacant 

South General Business (GB)        Commercial 
 
East 

 
Planned Development (PD) 
and General Commercial 
(GC) 
 

        
      Commercial, Single Family        
      Residential 
 

West Single-Family Residential-2 
(R-2) and Multi-Family (MF) 
 

      Single Family Subdivision, Multi- 
     Family Units 

    
 
 
 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject 
property is currently zoned as Planned Development (PD). 
 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-05Z 

Page 3 
 

PLATTING STATUS:  The property has not been platted.  Platting will be required prior to 
development of the land. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current adopted 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map indicates that approximately two thirds of 
the area should be offices, with the remainder being retail, offices, and services. 
Therefore, the designation of General Business (GB) being requested and some of the 
uses allowed in the GB zone would be not be consistent with the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan for two thirds of the site.   
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Pearland Pkwy, a major thoroughfares with sufficient width for right-of-way of 
120 feet.   
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, would allow all of the “Permitted By-Right” land uses in the City’s Land Use 
Matrix for the General Business (GB) zoning district in the Unified Development Code to 
be developed on the property without any further zoning approval.  Some of the more 
potentially invasive uses, if not designed in a complementary manner to nearby 
properties (especially abutting residential developments to the east and west), and with 
necessary safeguards to help mitigate any potentially negative impacts to the City’s 
image at this location are listed below: 
 

 Pool/Billiard Facility 
 All-terrain vehicle sales 
 Auto accessory and/or part sales 
 Auto sales/Dealer 
 Auto wash (full service) with no restrictions on location of bay doors 
 Gasoline Station 
 Credit Agency 
 Bed and Breakfast 
 Check Cashing Service 
 Extended Stay Hotel/Motel 
 Hotel 
 Laundromat (self-service) 
 Rehabilitation Care Facility (halfway house) 
 Rehabilitation Care Institution (commercial) 
 Cigars/Tobacco Shop 
 Consignment Shop 
 Convenience Store (with or without gasoline sales) 
 Department Store 
 Electronic Goods Store 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-05Z 

Page 4 
 

 Food Store/Supermarket 
 Furniture and/or appliance store 
 Garden Shop & Outside Plant Sales 
 Hardware Store 
 Jewelry Store 
 Medical Appliances & Sales 
 Motion Picture Theater 
 Outside Display 
 Restaurant (with or without drive-thru service) 
 Tavern 
 Variety Store 
 Video Rental 
 Assisted Living Facility 
 Auction House 
 Child Day Care Center 
 Hospital (for profit and non-profit) 
 Nursing/Convalescent Home 
 School (college/university, elementary, high school, junior high, other) 
 Exterminator Service 
 Machine Shop 

 
This is not a complete list of allowed uses in the General Business (GB) zoning district. 
 A complete list may be found in Chapter 2, Division 2, Section 2.5.2.1 of the Unified 
Development Code.   
 
A straight GB zone change also could potentially have a negative impact on future 
connectivity with surrounding development including the adjoining commercial property 
to the south and the existing residential neighborhood to the west.  A PD could allow for 
appropriate vehicular and pedestrian access to the adjoining residential neighborhood, 
alleviating some of the added traffic flow to Pearland Parkway.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change and has 
not been provided with this application. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
AGENT  AUTHORIZATION:  The Planning Department has on file documentation from the 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-05Z 

Page 5 
 

Settegast family   authorizing Beeman Strong to process this zone change application. 
 
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
 
Staff concerns with the current proposal: 

 
1. This area is a major entry point and gateway into the city.  This tract, located 

along Pearland Parkway, which serves as a major north south thoroughfare and 
an entry into the city, has opportunity to be developed in a manner that 
enhances the image of the City.  Further, any development on this tract will be 
very visible and provides a great opportunity to provide an amenity/public 
gathering space for the east side, similar to the Town Center, but at a lesser 
scale.  A zone change to GB will not provide any assurance as to the manner 
that the tract is developed.  Staff is unsure how the development being proposed 
will result in higher levels of amenities; enhanced pedestrian connectivity; strong 
sense of place; meaningful public places with visual focal points, as a site plan is 
not required for a zone change application. 
 

2. Property is open to all allowed uses in the GB zone, including those of concern 
that are listed above.  Some of these uses may not be appropriate to be located 
in a scenic corridor that is also an entry way into the city. 
 

3. Future access and connectivity to adjoining neighborhoods and commercial 
developments.   
 

4. Unlike the adjoining GB zoned property where a specific development was 
proposed (the future HEB will be located at that location) and a site plan as 
presented to the City Council, this zone change lacks a specific site plan or any 
kind of assurances regarding specific uses and quality of development.  
 

5. The recent rezoning of the 20 acre HEB parcel to the south in 2012, reverted 
that parcel to its original GB zone (prior to the PD being approved).  However, 
this subject parcel was zoned residential (R-2 and R-3) before a PD was 
approved in 2008.   

 



 
 

JPH 02-18-13 
Zone Change 2013-05Z 

Page 6 
 

6. Development on this tract will sets the direction for the rest of the vacant land 
(approx. 80 acres) north of this subject parcel. 

 
Therefore, based on the above information, if staff feels that a General Business (GB) 
zone is not appropriate for this site.  With this in mind, a Planned Development may be 
a better option moving forward.  The Unified Development Code states: 
 
 The purpose and intent of the PD district is to facilitate the design and 
implementation of retail development that is designed to aesthetically and harmoniously 
complement the adjacent residential and commercial areas. 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents 
 Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
Zone Change 2013-05Z
Pearland Pkwy
North of Broadway

R-2

GB

R-3

R-1 CLUSTER

R-1

PUD

GC

R-4

MF

OP

NS

BROADWAY ST

PEARLAND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER

BARRY ROSE RD

STRATFORD

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

LONDON CT

LIB
ERTY DR

SCHLIEDER DR

WINDSOR

CHURCHILL

ORANGE ST

E PLUM ST

NOTTINGHAM

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

KENT

HELEN LN

E ORANGE ST

MALON

CRUISE LN

SHADYBEND DR

TO
WER BRIDGE RD

HIDDEN CREEK DR

BYRON AVE

LEE CIR

FIREFLY RD

WATERLOO

SM
ITH

 LN

DURANGO DR

ETO
N DR

LAYTON PLACE DR

RAIN LILY CT

¯0 600 1,200300 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





Zone Change 2013‐05Z
31 Acres on Pearland Parkway ‐ PD to GB

Name Street Address
DRIS MOHAMED & WAFA BENACHOUR 2926 WATERLOO RD
DAWSON STEVE & DEBORA 2924 WATERLOO RD
WHITE SONYA K 2922 WATERLOO RD
MOELLER CHANNING THEODORE & MELISSA 
ANN COOK 222 SETTLERS HAVEN RD
WHISPERING APARTMENTS LLC % CLAUDIA L CROCKER 2301 S CAPITAL OF TEXAS HWY
ROBERTS DEANN M 2932 WATERLOO RD
CONFIDENTIAL 2930 WATERLOO RD
JOHNSON DEBORAH V 2928 WATERLOO RD
KING KIMBERLY C 2901 LONDON CT
HUTH MICHAEL & KRISTEN CASTILLO 2904 LONDON CT
CONFIDENTIAL 2902 LONDON CT
LEAL DAVID 2940 WATERLOO RD
MILLS JASON M 2938 WATERLOO RD
LEE‐JENNINGS KATHLEEN BERNADETTE 2934 WATERLOO RD
WILLIAMS MATTHEW K 2836 WATERLOO RD



Unit City State Zip
PEARLAND TX 77581
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4542
PEARLAND TX 77581

CLEVELAND NC 27013
STE J102 AUSTIN TX 78746‐7706

PEARLAND TX 77581‐4538
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4538
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4542
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4533
PEARLAND TX 77581
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4532
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4538
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4538
PEARLAND TX 77581‐4538
PEARLAND TX 77581



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-05Z
Pearland Pkwy
North of Broadway

Parks

Offices

Retail, Offices and Services

Low Density Residential

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

High Density Residential

BROADWAY ST

PEARLAND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER

BARRY ROSE RD

STRATFORD

SCHLIEDER DR

WINDSOR

CHURCHILL

E PLUM ST

NOTTINGHAM CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

KENT

HELEN LN

HIDDEN CREEK DR

BYRON AVE

LEE CIR

FIREFLY RD

WATERLOO

YMCA DR

DURANGO DR
LAYTON PLACE DR

CREEK BANK LN

¯0 600 1,200300 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-05Z
Pearland Pkwy
North of Broadway

BROADWAY ST

PEARLAND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER

BARRY ROSE RD

STRATFORD

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

LONDON CT

LIB
ERTY DR

SCHLIEDER DR

WINDSOR

CHURCHILL

ORANGE ST

E PLUM ST

NOTTINGHAM

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

KENT

HELEN LN

E ORANGE ST

MALON

CRUISE LN

SHADYBEND DR

TO
WER BRIDGE RD

HIDDEN CREEK DR

BYRON AVE

LEE CIR

FIREFLY RD

WATERLOO

SM
ITH

 LN

DURANGO DR

ETO
N DR

LAYTON PLACE DR

CREEK BANK LN

¯0 610 1,220305 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    02/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four 

 
 

 Old Business      X   New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular P&Z meetings are held on the first and third Monday of every month. This form must be received 6 
calendar days prior to the meeting in order to be included on the agenda. 

Summary:  A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, 
applicant, on behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential 
subdivision located on Savannah Bend Dr, and Fieldcrest Ln.  

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval. 



AGENDA – PUBLIC HEARING OF THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY18, 
2013, AT 6:30 P.M., 2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 

SAVANNAH BEND SECTION FOUR 
 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat 
of Savannah Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential subdivision on 
the following described property, to wit 
 
Being 7.2 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, Abstract 403 and J.S. 
Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a 
portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract (described as Tract 5) 
conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an instrument of record File #00-
037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being 
an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, Official Public Records of Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location:  Savannah Bend Drive and Fieldcrest Lane 

 



 
 

P&Z 02/18/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2013 
 

 
 

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SAVANNAH BEND SECTION FOUR 
 

A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat 
of Savannah Bend Section Four, a 26 lot single-family residential subdivision on 
the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 7.2 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, 
more particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract 
(described as Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an 
instrument of record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Savannah Bend Drive and Fieldcrest Lane. 
  

 
 
SUMMARY:  This request is for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for a 26-lot single-
family subdivision within Savannah Development.  This proposed subdivision is within 
the City of Pearland’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and has a development 
agreement with the City.  As the property is in the ETJ, Zoning does not apply. 
However, this development is governed by a development agreement which adheres to 
the city ordinance dealing specifically with lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. 
 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The Unified Development Code does not apply for 
the Savannah Development Agreement as this was approved with the previous zoning 
ordinance, The Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance.  The Development 
Agreement that is in place governs the overall development of the subdivision and was 
written to meet the guidelines of the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Savannah Bend Section 
4 appears to be in conformance with the approved Savannah Development agreement.   
 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 02/18/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four 

Page 2 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit 1: Savannah Development Agreement: R-3 (Single Family Dwelling 
District) 

Standard Required R-3 Standard Minimum Provided 
Minimum lot width N/A 60 Feet Approximately      

65 feet 
Minimum lot depth N/A N/A 120 feet 
Minimum lot area N/A 6,000 Square feet Greater than 7,000 

Square feet 
Maximum Density 7 dwelling units an 

acre or less 
N/A 3.07 Dwelling Units 

an acre. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
South ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
East ETJ (None) Vacant land 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLACE: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential land use plan designation.  The proposed subdivision is 
within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as the average lot 
size is 8000 – 9000 sq. ft.    
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
within the Savannah development and served by local streets.  The Savannah 
Development is served by a future 120-foot Major Thoroughfare of Post Road (CR 58).     
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there have been no additional comments.   
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 



 
 

P&Z 02/18/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Four 

Page 3 
 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to the 
Savannah Development Agreement.  Plans have been reviewed and approved by the 
Engineering Department. 
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees will be paid at the time of final plat. 
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  One percent of the total cost of infrastructure will be paid at 
the time of Final Plat.  An agreement has been reached with the city allowing the 
developer to pay previously unpaid inspection fees in installments.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 
Savannah Bend Section Four as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Agreement.   
 

3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 
property is in conformance with the goals of the city. 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Savannah Bend Section Four Plat 

 
 
 



Vicinity Map
Preliminary Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 4

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Future Land Use Map
Preliminary Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 4

Low Density Residential

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Preliminary Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 4

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    02/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

 
 

 Old Business      X   New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular P&Z meetings are held on the first and third Monday of every month. This form must be received 6 
calendar days prior to the meeting in order to be included on the agenda. 

Summary:  A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, 
applicant, on behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential 
subdivision located on Savannah Bend Dr, and Catalina Cove. 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval. 



 
 

P&Z 02/18/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2013 
 

 
 

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SAVANNAH BEND SECTION FIVE 
 

A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat 
of Savannah Bend Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential subdivision on 
the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 15.5 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, 
more particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract 
(described as Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an 
instrument of record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Savannah Bend Drive and Catalina Cove. 
  

 
 
SUMMARY:  This request is for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for a 30-lot single-
family subdivision within Savannah Development.  This proposed subdivision is within 
the City of Pearland’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and has a development 
agreement with the City.  As the property is in the ETJ, Zoning does not apply. 
However, this development is governed by a development agreement which adheres to 
the city ordinance dealing specifically with lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. 
 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The Unified Development Code does not apply for 
the Savannah Development Agreement as this was approved with the previous zoning 
ordinance, The Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance.  The development 
agreement that is in place governs the overall development of the subdivision and was 
written to meet the guidelines of the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Savannah Bend Section 
4 appears to be in conformance with the approved Savannah Development agreement.   
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 02/18/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

Page 2 
 

 
 

Exhibit 1: Savannah Development Agreement: R-3 (Single Family Dwelling 
District) 

Standard Required R-3 Standard Minimum Provided 
Minimum lot width N/A 60 Feet Approximately      

55 feet* 
Minimum lot depth N/A N/A 115 feet 
Minimum lot area N/A 6,000 Square feet Greater than 6,325 

Square feet 
Maximum Density 7 dwelling units an 

acre or less 
N/A 3.07 Dwelling Units 

an acre. 
* The Savannah Development Agreement follows the R-3 PUD standards of the Land 
Use and Urban Design Ordinance, which does not have a required minimum lot size or 
width.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
South ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
East ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Drill Site 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLACE: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential land use plan designation.  The proposed subdivision is 
within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as the average lot 
size is 6000 – 7000 sq. ft.    
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
within the Savannah development and served by local streets.  The Savannah 
Development is served by a future 120-foot Major Thoroughfare of Post Road (CR 58).     
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there have been no additional comments.   
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 02/18/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

Page 3 
 

UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to the 
Savannah Development Agreement.  Plans have been reviewed and approved by the 
Engineering Department. 
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees will be paid at the time of final plat. 
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  One percent of the total cost of infrastructure will be paid at 
the time of Final Plat.  An agreement has been reached with the city allowing the 
developer to pay previously unpaid inspection fees in installments.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 
Savannah Bend Section Five as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Agreement.   
 

3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 
property is in conformance with the goals of the city. 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Savannah Bend Section Five Plat 

 
 
 



Vicinity Map
Preliminary Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 5

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Future Land Use Map
Preliminary Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 5

Low Density Residential

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Preliminary Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 5

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

E 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 2/18/2013 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2012 
 

 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan 
 

A request by Covington Estates, LLC., applicant and owner, for approval of a 
Cluster Plan on a 9.637 acre tract of land for  a single-family residential 
subdivision, generally located north of Hughes Ranch Road on Hillhouse Road. 
 
Legal Description: A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20-A, 
situated in Lot 20 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, 
Abstract No. 506, as recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map 
Records, and; 

 
A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20, situated in Lot 20 of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, Abstract No. 506, as 
recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map Records. 
 
 
General Location: North of Hughes Ranch Road on Hillhouse Road 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Cluster Plan on Hillhouse Road.  The proposal is for 
20 single-family residential lots, with 2.94 acres of amenitized detention, and .4 acres of 
open space, in the form of a pocket park and entry sidewalk to the amenitized detention.  
 
The Cluster Plan is intended to allow flexibility with lot sizes for the developer and in 
return the applicant shall provide open space and amenities which are not achieved 
through the application of minimum lot standards.  The Unified Development Code 
specifically defines both open space and amenities, and those definitions are provided 
later in this report. These open spaces and amenities are specifically listed as criteria of 
approval for a Cluster Development Plan, among other criteria listed in the Unified 
Development Code. (Section 2.2.4.4, UDC, Criteria of Approval for Cluster 
Development Plans) 
 
The property is currently zoned Suburban Residential-12 (SR-12). This zoning is a 
result of a zone change from Residential Estate (RE) the property received in November 
of 2012.   Upon approval from Council to rezone the property to reduce lot size and 
setback requirements, the applicant has requested a Cluster Development plan to 
further reduce lot size requirements, as discussed below. 
 
 
The typical proposed lot size for the Cluster Development plan will be 84.5’ x 140,’ 

 



 
 

P&Z 2/18/2013 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 2 
 

which equals 11,830 square feet. The minimum lot size in a traditional SR-12 
development would be 100’ X 90’ and 12,000 square feet.  The original RE zone would 
have required a minimum lot size 21,780 square feet with lot dimensions of 120’ x 90’ 
and a residential density 1.3 for a cluster development.  The density being proposed is 
2.08 units per acre.  This information is further illustrated in the table below: 
 
    Proposed Cluster SR-12  RE 
Minimum lot area:  10,961 sq ft  12,000 sq ft 21,780 sq ft 
Minimum lot width:  84.5’*   100’  120’ 
Minimum lot depth:  140’*   90’  90’ 
Density (units/acre)  2.08   2.3  1.3  
 
*typical lot width and depth for the proposed Cluster Development Plan. 
 
The definition of gross residential density, per the Unified Development Code is below: 
 

 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North RE Residential Estate 
South RE Residential Estate 
East RE  Residential Estate 
West R-3 Single Family Residential-3 (R-3) 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently zoned Suburban 
Residential-12 (SR-12).  If approved for this site, a cluster development plan would 
allow the developer to vary the size of lots as long as the overall density of the 
development does not go over 2.3 dwelling units an acre, as specified in Section 2.2.4.3 
of the Unified Development Code.  The current site plan for the proposed Cluster 
Development Plan indicates a cul de sac length over 600’, which is the maximum 
permitted in section 3.2.6.4 (l) of the Unified Development Code.   Therefore, the current 
site plan does not meet this requirement of the Unified Development Code.  Section 
3.2.6.4 (M) allows the Planning and Zoning Commission to approve a variance to 
extend the cul de sac length to a maximum of 750’, in the following circumstances: 
 



 
 

P&Z 2/18/2013 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 3 
 

 
 
As a condition of the variance approval for the cul de sac, the Commission may want to 
consider requesting the applicant to amend the Cluster Development Plan to better 
meet the intent of a Cluster Plan with regards to amenities which are accessible to the 
entire development. 
 
ANALYSIS OF THE CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN: The Planning and Zoning 
Commission, or the City Council on appeal, shall apply the following factors in taking 
action on the Cluster Development Plan application, contained in Section 2.2.4.4 of the 
Unified Development Code: 
 

1. The Cluster Development Plan meets the standards for residential density 
as outlined in the following in relation to each zoning district:  
 

It appears that the Cluster Plan submitted would meet the 2.3 units per 
acre requirement, as the proposed density is 2.08 units per acre. 

 
 

2. The Cluster Development Plan is consistent with other zoning district 
regulations, except minimum lot size, width and depth. 
 

The approved Cluster Development Plan is consistent with the SR-12 
(Suburban Residential-12) zoning district, with the exception of the 
variations on lot size, width and depth. As previously mentioned in this 
report, the Unified Development Code’s maximum cul de sac street length 
of 600’.  In order for the Commission to approve the Cluster Development 
Plan as submitted, the Commission would need to approve a variance to 



 
 

P&Z 2/18/2013 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 4 
 

this requirement if the Commission finds that the requirements to do so, 
provided earlier in this report, are met.  The Commission may, as a 
condition of that approval, request modifications be made to the proposed 
Cluster Development plan to ensure that the intent of a Cluster 
Development is met. The level of amenities provided at this time do not 
appear to meet the intent of a Cluster Development, as further discussed 
below. 
 

 
3. The Cluster Development Plan contains sufficient buffering to assure 

compatibility with adjacent uses and the character of the neighborhood.  
 

This Cluster Development Plan will abut Residential Estate (RE) zoning to 
the north and the south, and Single Family Residential-3 (R-3) to the west.   
Dawson High School property to the east.  It is not anticipated that 
additional buffering will be necessary to mitigate any adverse impact. 

 
4. The Cluster Development Plan provides open space or amenities to the 

development that could not be achieved through application of minimum 
lot size standards.  As referred to herein, open space and amenities do not 
include any land dedicated to the City under the parkland dedication 
requirement in Chapter 3, Article 2, Division 10.   

 
It does not appear that the proposed Cluster Development Plan provides 
usable open space or amenities which are accessible to the entire 
development, with easy access, in order to meet the intent of a cluster 
plan.  These concerns have been addressed and discussed with the 
applicant.  Please see staff comments below for further details.  

 
 
STAFF CONCERNS: At this time, staff has a number of concerns that need to be 
addressed prior to the approval of this cluster plan. 
 
1) A primary trail, per the City's Parks Plan, is 10', and a sidewalk adjacent to a 
thoroughfare is 6'.  The 7' trail being proposed around the detention pond is narrow, 
particularly if multi-use (running, walking, biking, etc).  An 8' trail would better handle the 
variety of uses.  A hard surface may also be easier maintained.  The applicant’s current 
site plan indicates that a concrete trail will be provided, however the applicant has since 
indicated that the trail will be crushed stone.   
 
2) The entrance feature is not indicated on the proposed site plan.  Additionally, specific 
details are not shown for the entrance feature.  The pictures of other examples cannot 
be written into the Cluster Plan, as they are only examples.  Therefore, specifics being 
proposed for this location are needed to that they are enforceable. 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 2/18/2013 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 5 
 

3) It does not appear that the detention pond, and access to the pond area, are an 
integral part of, and serve the entire community.  The entrance to the pond area, a 
narrow path between lots 13 and 14 may not encourage use of the amenity.  Due to its 
location and size, it may pose a security concern, which may not make using it inviting 
to residents.  Please refer to the definitions below and indicate how the proposed 
detention pond meet these definitions: 
 

(1) AMENITIZED DETENTION/RETENTION POND:  An area that is designed to 
capture, store and release stormwater and that is designed as a site amenity 
by being aesthetically pleasing, by meeting the definition of “open space” 
herein, and be being constructed to seem natural (i.e., without visible 
concrete). Such areas have a natural edge and are constructed to resemble a 
naturally created lake or pond.  Also refer to the definition of “amenity” below. 

(2) AMENITY:  Aesthetic or other characteristics of a development that increase 
its desirability visually, desirability to the City of Pearland, and/or its 
marketability to the public.  Amenities may vary according to the type and 
nature of development, but examples include a naturalized retention/detention 
pond (refer to definition herein), a recreational facility, landscaping, or large 
trees. 

 
4) Please submit exhibits and illustrations which can be quantified and implemented for 
this development.  A description of a “detailed” entry is provided, however without an 
exhibit to illustrate the details, it is unclear how they can be enforced.  Additionally, 
reference to a gazebo is provided, however it is unclear where this will be, or what other 
amenities will be provided with it. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: This property has not yet been platted.  Approval of the Cluster 
Development Plan is the first step in that process.  Formal subdivision platting will be 
required prior to development. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Suburban Residential Development.  The approved 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that corresponding lot sizes for Suburban 
Residential would be 10,000, 12,000, or 15,000 square foot lots.  Therefore, the 
proposed development is not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject contains frontage 
on Hillhouse Road, a minor collector with a minimum right-of-way of 60’.  Hillhouse 
Road is currently constructed as a two lane road, with a width of approximately 20’.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site, but 
would have to be extended to the site by the applicant.  
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 2/18/2013 
Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 6 
 

IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: As additional information is 
provided to illustrate how the proposed development meets the approval criteria listed in 
Section 2.2.4.4 of the Unified Development Code, impact on existing and future 
development will be more clear.  If the information provided indicates that the proposed 
Cluster Plan meets all of the criteria of approval in the Unified Development Code, then 
the proposed development should not have a negative impact on existing and future 
development in the area.  If a cluster development plan were to be approved which did 
not meet the criteria of approval, the result would be a development with smaller lot 
sizes than typically permitted in an SR-12 zone, without compensating amenities.  At 
this time, it does not appear that the amenities being provided would meet the intent of 
a Cluster Development Plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The development does not appear to be any 
substantially different than traditional SR-12 zoning in terms of lot size, amenities, and 
open space. Therefore, staff is unable to recommend approval at this time.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Cluster Plan Exhibit 

 







































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM F 

 
 

 
DISCUSSION 

ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Cluster Development  
3. Planning Day Presentation, March 7, 2013 
4. Next P&Z Meeting, March 4, 2013 
5. Revised JPH Meeting, March 25, 2013 

 
 



 

Detention Pond Economic Impact Information 

The results of one study suggest that "pond front" property can increase the selling price of a new 

property by 10% (EPA, 1995). Another study found the perceived value (value estimates by the 

residents of a community) of homes increased by about 15-25% when located near a wet pond 

(Emmerling-Dinovo, 1995). 

Case Studies 

The following case studies highlight developments where the incorporation of urban runoff controls 

resulted in economic benefits to the local homeowners or developers. The case studies detail how the 

presence of aesthetically designed runoff controls affected both the initial sale value of new 

developments and the resale values for existing developments. 

New Development 

Columbia, Maryland A landmark survey by the National Institute for Urban Wildlife indicated that 75 

percent of the residents of Columbia, Maryland, a community planned for a population of 100,000, 

prefer urban runoff ponds that contain permanent pools of water, wetlands, and wildlife over the dry 

ponds many municipalities prescribe for their subdivisions. Residents (94 percent) overwhelmingly 

believed that managing future runoff basins for fish and wildlife as well as for flood and sediment 

control would be desirable. Residents (92 percent) considered the view of birds and other wildlife to be 

particularly important and felt that the sight of them outweighed any nuisances they created. Perhaps 

most importantly, 75 percent of Columbia homeowners felt that permanent bodies of water added to 

real estate values and 73 percent said they would pay more for property located in a neighborhood 

with stormwater control basins designed to enhance fish or wildlife use. The study in Columbia 

covered an area that contained 3 lakes, 22 runoff ponds with a permanent pool of water, and 9 dry 

detention basins (Adams et al., 1984; Tourbier and Westmacott, 1992). 

For further information contact Charles Rhodehamel, Columbia Association, Land Management 

Division, 9450 Gerwig Lane, Columbia, Maryland 21046; phone (410) 381-0288. 

Champaign-Urbana, Illinois 

Residents of seven Champaign-Urbana, Illinois, subdivisions with urban runoff detention ponds were 

questioned about the role the pond played in their decision to purchase their home. Sixty-three 

percent of the respondents living adjacent to a wet pond identified the pond as what they liked most 

about their neighborhood. Seventy-four percent of homeowners surveyed believed that wet ponds 

contributed positively to the image of a subdivision as a desirable place to live. Only 3.5 percent felt a 

wet pond had a negative influence on the image of their neighborhood. Overall, respondents believed 



that lots adjacent to a wet pond were worth an average of 21.9 percent more than comparable 

nonadjacent lots in the same subdivision. Eighty-two percent of all respondents said they would, in the 

future, be willing to pay a premium for a lot adjacent to a wet pond (Emmerling-DiNovo, 1995). 

 

Boulder, Colorado 

Built in 1993, the Sale Lake subdivision of single-family homes surrounds a 4-acre constructed 

wetland. Sale Lake demonstrates environmental sensitivity in suburban development. Lots located 

alongside the wetland sold for as much as $134,000, up to a 30 percent premium over lots with no 

water view (St. Germain, 1995). For further information contact Will St. Germain, St. Germain 

Construction, Inc., 2709 Pine Street, Boulder, Colorado 80302; phone (303) 449-1379. Highland Park, 

Illinois "Preservation is not a problem for developers; it's a golden opportunity," insists the president 

of the development company for Hybernia, a community of 122 single-family houses on a 133.5-acre 

site in Highland Parks, Illinois. The site, zoned for 40,000-square-foot lots, was laid out around a 

constructed pond/stream system and 27 acres of land approved as a state nature preserve. The site 

includes 16.5 acres of ponds. Forebays at urban runoff inlets catch sediments (Tourbier and 

Westmacott, 1992). Hybernia is a an example of ecological landscape planning. Waterfront lots, which 

now sell for $299,900 to $374,900, draw a 10 percent premium above those with no water view 

(Margolin, 1995). 

For further information contact Peter Margolin, Hybernia Homeowners Association, c/o Red Seal 

Development Corporation, 425 Huehl Road, Building 18, Northbrook, Illinois 60062; phone (708) 272-

5600. 

Alexandria, Virginia Chancery on the Lake, a condominium development in Alexandria, Virginia, is a 

residential project with an attractive 14-acre urban runoff detention area. Realtors are currently 

promoting the wet pond as the development's feature selling point. The wet pond will be surrounded 

by a walking trail, and a gazebo and fishing pier will also be built. According to Ginger Harden, Sales 

Associate of Chancery Associates LP, condominiums are priced between $129,990 and $139,990. 

Condominiums that front the lake are selling at a $7,500 premium. For the first four buildings on the 

market, a $5,000 premium was charged for units fronting the lake. The lakefront units were the only 

units selling, and now the premium has been raised to $7,500 (Harden, 1995). 

For further information contact Eric Yakuchev, sales manager, 6540 S. Van Dorn Street, Alexandria, 

Virginia 22315; phone (703) 922-7171 

Wichita, Kansas 

The owner of a 72.3-acre parcel of land had plans to fill deteriorating wetlands before building a 

subdivision. He was persuaded to enhance them instead and now promotes enhanced and constructed 

wetlands as the feature selling point of The Landing. A lake with 3,750 feet of shoreline provides 



aesthetic and recreational value, as well as sensible detention of urban runoff. Waterfront lots 

currently sell for $18,000 to $40,000, a premium of up to $21,000 (150 percent) above comparable 

lots with no water view (Baird, 1995). For further information contact Sally Baird, sales agent, 520 S. 

Holland Street, Suite 401, Wichita, Kansas 67209; phone (316) 722-0777. 

Existing Development 

Fairfax County, Virginia 

Since their construction in 1971, units facing the constructed pond in the townhouse community of 

Pinewood Lakes have sold at a premium. Of the 497 units, all with exactly the same square footage 

according to tax records, only 20 have direct water views in either the front or the rear. Figures show 

the average 1994 sales price of townhouses lacking the water amenity to be $93,833. The average 

waterfront sales price is $100,000, a premium of $6,117. Higher sales prices for properties with views 

of the water have been consistent for 23 years (Wade, 1995). Evans Mills is an upscale community of 

41 townhouses in the Tysons Corner area built around an existing pond. Fairfax County tax records 

show Evans Mills waterfront townhouses sell at higher prices. In 1994, waterfront homes sold for an 

average $17,467 premium above the average $419,200 price of homes not facing the pond (Wade, 

1995). 

Single-family homes can have higher initial sale values as well as higher resale values when they face 

urban runoff detention areas. County tax records reveal that land values in Franklin Farms, an 

established residential neighborhood in northern Virginia, are highest when located in view of its 5-

acre urban runoff detention area, which is surrounded by a walking path furnished by the developer. 

"Waterfront" homes in this neighborhood sold for 10 to 20 percent more initially and again at resale 

than land with no water view (Downham, 1995). (These percentages might be slightly higher than 

actual premiums due to possible additional amenities in the waterfront homes.) 

Regional Basin and Overlook at Heritage Park  

 



With increased awareness of the benefits that green spaces provide, the Board of Harris County 

MUD 55 converted their detention facility from a flat-bottom, grass lined, rectilinear basin into a 

multi-use Regional Recreation Facility. 

 

 



Mandolin Gardens Park  

Mandolin Gardens Park, is an 11 acre oasis in the middle of the community, for which TLA 

created a design that rejuvenated two connected detention basins and then 'overlayed' park 

amenities of 2 miles of fully accessible trails, plazas, and overlooks. 

 

 

 

  



Repayment Analysis 

25 homes adjacent to the two 5 acre ponds on P Street.  Average home value of $175,000 x 20% 

increase in value = $35,000 per home.  Multiplied by 25 adjacent homes = $875,000 increase in home 

values.  Multiplied times annual tax rate of .072 = $63,000 in increased revenue per year. 

Adjacent 
Homes 

Avg 
Value 

Increase 
% 

Value 
Increase tax rate 

Annual 
Tax Delta 

Project 
Cost 

Years to 
Recoup 

25 $175,000 0.2 $875,000 0.072 $63,000 $1,000,000 15.87 

Area 
Homes 

Avg 
Value 

Increase 
% 

Value 
Increase tax rate 

Annual 
Tax Delta 

Project 
Cost 

Years to 
Recoup 

50 $175,000 0.1 $875,000 0.072 $63,000 $1,000,000 15.87 

     

Annual 
Tax Delta 

Project 
Cost 

Years to 
Recoup 

     
$126,000 $1,000,000 7.94 

 



 

City of Pearland 
Planning Day Presentation 

Our next Planning Day Presentation will be held 

on Thursday, March 7th in the Council Chambers 

located at City Hall, beginning at 8:30 a.m. 

Please arrive early for refreshments and enjoy our 

presentation.  We will conclude with door prize 

drawings and we are always available for 

questions and answers at the conclusion of our 

presentation. 

The Planning Department has been 

hosting a series of informational 

meetings with the intent to educate and 

update those interested in living, working 

and playing in Pearland. 

Please join us for the City of Pearland’s 

17th Planning Day Presentation since 

2005.   

March 7, 2013 
8:30 a.m. 

Council Chambers 
 

Please RSVP to Judy Brown by March 5th  
Telephone:    281 652 1768 
Email:            jbrown@ci.pearland.tx.us 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, TX  77581 

 
 WWW.CITYOFPEARLAND.COM 
 

TOPICS: 

• Redevelopment and Reuse 
of Existing Properties 
 

• Subdivision Platting 
 

• Permitting Process 
 
 

 

 Developing a Great City 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=pearland,+texas&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=_43z9PYc2w0gaM&tbnid=DfVUbCe-ZE8baM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.texansdreamrealty.com%2FPearland.html&ei=kMIbUZulH6PE2gXMqYHIDg&psig=AFQjCNFpmh1FcqIgsEA6z9aOZF41izRoxw&ust=1360859945869052�
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=city+of+pearland&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=4PeTvNIHRcPljM&tbnid=GY7MYaccqV_arM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.todayshouston.com%2Fhouston-texas-homes-for-lease-brazoria-county-5.php&ei=8u0bUYfLPOjO2AWzyoGQAg&psig=AFQjCNE51lBVC02H5UEVSSsz4w6VdYzc0g&ust=1360871178451494�


 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1. P&Z Agenda Coversheet.pdf
	2. Agenda February 18, 2013 P&Z
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. P&Z Minutes 020413
	5. NEW BUSINESS
	6. AGENDA ITEM A
	7. Zone Change 2013-04Z Packet
	1.  Zone Change 2013-04Z JPH Agenda
	Zone Change 2013-04Z Packet.pdf
	1.  Zone Change 2013-04Z JPH Agenda.pdf
	2. Zone Change 2013-04Z Staff Report
	3. Zone Change 2013-04Z Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-04Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-04Z Abutters List
	Daycare

	6. Zone Change 2013-04Z FLUP Man
	7. Zone Change 2013-04Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-04Z Applicant Packet


	8. AGENDA ITEM B
	9. Zone Change 2013-05Z Packet
	1. Zone Change 2013-05Z Agenda Request
	Zone Change 2013-05Z Packet.pdf
	2. Zone Change 2013-05Z Staff Report.pdf
	3. Zone Change 2013-05Z Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-05Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-05Z Abutters List
	Results

	6. Zone Change 2013-05Z FLUP Map
	7. Zone Change 2013-05Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-05Z Applicant Packet


	10. AGENDA ITEM C
	11. Savannah Bend 4 Packet
	1 Agenda Request Savannah Bend 4- P&Z.pdf
	2 P&Z Agenda Savannah Bend 4
	3 P & Z Savannah Bend 4
	4 Vicinity Map
	5 Future Land Use Map
	6 Aerial Map
	7 Prelim Plat of Savannah Bend Section 4

	12. AGENDA ITEM D
	13. Savannah Bend 5 Packet
	1 Agenda Request Savannah Bend 5.pdf
	3 P & Z Savannah Bend 5
	4 Vicinity Map
	5 Future Land Use Map
	6 Aerial Map
	7 Prelim Plat of Savannah Bend Section 5

	14. AGENDA ITEM E
	15. Covington Estates Packet
	Covington Estates Cluster Development Plan.pdf
	Covington Estates Cluster Document

	16. Discussion Items
	17. Cluster Dev Discussion Item Material
	18. Planning Day Discussion March 7 2013
	WWW.CITYOFPEARLAND.COM

	19. ADJOURN MEETING



